
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

March 28, 2016 
5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Joy Moman, Municipal Court Vestavia Hills Magistrate Supervisor 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. Presentation – David Barber – Prescott House 
7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports 
9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
10. Approval of Minutes – March 14, 2016 (Regular Meeting), March 21, 2016 (Special 

Meeting) And March 21, 2016 (Work Session)   

Old Business  

11. Ordinance Number 2648 – Conditional Use - 854 Vestlake Ridge Drive, Use For A 
Home Office For A Consulting Business; James Sumner, Jr., Owner 

12. Ordinance Number 2649 – Rezoning – 2834 and 2838 Acton Place; Rezone From 
Jefferson County A to Vestavia Hills A; Compatible Zoning; Gail Acton, Owner 

13. Resolution Number 4810 – A Resolution Approving Funding And Purchasing For Two 
Vehicles For The Police Department 

New Business  

14. Resolution Number 4812 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 

15. Resolution Number 4813 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For SHAC, Phase II Trail And 
Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver A Contract For Said 
Construction 

16. Resolution Number 4814 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With Jefferson County For Election Services  

17. Resolution Number 4815 – A Resolution Appointing An Election Manager For The 2016 
City Of Vestavia Hills Municipal Elections 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

18. Resolution Number 4816 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An 
Agreement With Birmingham Humane Society 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

19. Resolution Number 4817 – A Resolution Appropriating An Additional $24,000 To The 
Existing Turf Management Agreement For Mowing Of Park Properties 

20. Citizens Comments 
21. Executive Session 
22. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MARCH 14, 2016 
 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor Pro-Tem called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with 
the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

George Pierce  
      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Deputy Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 
 
 Invocation was given by Mary Elliott, Parks and Recreation Foundation Board 
Treasurer.   
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 
 

• Mr. Henley announced that the Council would begin accepting applications for 
the Board of Education which will be due by Monday, March 28 with interviews 
beginning at 7:30 AM on April 20.  He explained the method of selection for a 
Board of Education appointment and invited everyone interested to submit an 
application.  The new appointment will be announced on Monday, April 25, 2016.   

• Mr. Pierce recognized Roger Stevr who was in attendance representing the 
Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce. 

• David J. Putman, candidate for US Congress, District 6, introduced himself and 
asked for support in the November election. 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 2 
 

 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes updated the Council on ongoing projects including upgrading and 
repairs to the Wald Park swimming pool.  Those repairs are underway and should 
be completed by mid-April. 

• There have been various delays on the Meadowlawn Park demolition and 
construction.  The homes have been removed and the relocation of utility lines 
should occur soon so the contractor can mobilize within the next couple of weeks. 
The contract is for a 120-day contract. 

• Mr. Downes updated the Council on the development of the former Altadena 
Valley Country Club for both the recreational and residential developments.  
Harris Doyle Homes has begun demolishing the old buildings in preparation for 
the eventual residential area.  There have been some complaints deriving from the 
debris removal and he’s asking for patience. 

• Partial funding for Phase II of SHAC has been approved by the Council with the 
Foundation providing the lion’s share of the funding.  Bids were received for a 
portion of the trails and are being reviewed by the City’s consultant. 

• A multiparty agreement was approved that would ultimately lead to the re-
working of Manorbrook Drive.  The City, working in collaboration with the 
development there, would fix the roadway to allow better access including, but 
not limited to utility work which is just being completed. 

• An event coming to the Rocky Ridge Entertainment District involves a 3-lane 
waterslide going along Lime Rock Road.  There is one driveway affected and the 
family who resides there is excited about the project.  Publicity will begin soon 
and the City is working with the High School for parking.  The vendors of Rocky 
Ridge are working together to help to make this a great event. 

 
 

COUNCILORS’ REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Pierce announced that the Feral Cat Committee will meet again this Friday at 
1 PM in the Executive Conference Room. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of February 17, 2016 (Work Session) and February 22, 2016 
(Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of February 17, 2016 

(Work Session) and February 22, 2016 (Regular Meeting) and approve 
them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call 
vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 3 
 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4803 
 
Resolution Number 4803 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager To Hire 3 

New Police Officers And 3 New Firefighters/Paramedics  (Public 
Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4803 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this has been discussed several times in work sessions.  
The Fire Department has received an upgrade in ISO ratings from 3 to 2 and the Police 
Department is doing outstanding work.  However, in order to keep up with demand, both 
the Police and Fire Chiefs have suggested ways to allow the hiring of three police officers 
and three additional firefighters/paramedics. 
 
 Chief St. John addressed the Council relative to his request for three 
firefighters/paramedics.  He explained the reasons and gave examples that reinforced this 
need within the northeastern part of the City, primarily in Liberty Park and Cahaba 
Heights.  This would allow the Fire Department to add three new firefighter/paramedics 
to the Vestavia Hills Fire Department to be assigned to the Vestavia Hills Alberto C. 
Zaragoza Jr. Fire Station Number 4.  He gave specifics as to salary ranges which would 
include benefits, personal protection equipment and uniforms. 
 
 Chief Rary addressed the City Council and illustrated his need for three additional 
patrol officers that are needed in certain beats.  He stated that with the retirement of two 
of his highest ranked employees, he is able to hire these three officers with no impact in 
the immediate budget with the exception of uniforms and hiring two other additional 
officers.  It would require future funding for the additional officers as with any other 
employee.  He stated that he thinks these officers could be employed very soon.   
 
 Mr. Henley clarified that they will hire five total employees.  Two will replace the 
promoted employees from the retirements and then three additional employees. 
 
 Mr. Pierce thanked Chief St. John and Chief Rary for approaching the Council for 
needed personnel instead of waiting.  There are so many positive things happening in the 
City, we should provide excellent services to the residents. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 Jim Diggle, 4056 White Oak Drive, asked if the Mtn. Brook Department could 
service Vestavia Hills along with Vestavia Hills. 
 
 Chief St. John explained the mutual aid agreement that already exists with 
Mountain Brook.  He stated that they are good partners and they work well with the 
City’s Fire Department. 
 
 **Mr. Sharp stepped out of the Chamber. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
Pro-Tem closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – no vote  Mr. Ammons – yes  
       Motion carried. 
 
 **Mr. Sharp stepped back into the Chamber. 
 
 Mr. Ammons took a moment to announce that he went to the High School shortly 
after the accident that occurred and that the first responders and the police officers that 
held back traffic to allow EMS personnel to arrive all worked together seamlessly.  He 
indicated that the training and emergency activity training of these individuals work well 
within the Community. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4804 
 
Resolution Number 4804 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 

To Execute And Deliver An (MOU) Agreement With Jefferson 
County For Storm Debris Removal From Devastating Storms Which 
May Occur In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama  (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4804 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is a request by Jefferson County to work with 
them and other municipalities in case there is a natural disaster in this area to allow the 
removal of debris within each municipality.  He explained the process and recommended 
that the MOU be executed. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the agreement and he also recommends 
approval. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor Pro-Tem closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 5 
 

  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
       Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2647 
 
Ordinance Number 2647 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City 

Manager To Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Cost Sharing 
For The Grants Mill Road Corridor Study (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2647 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that that is a request for a cost-sharing agreement to create a 
transportation corridor in the Lake Purdy area.  The project is led by the City of 
Birmingham.  He explained the terms of the agreement and recommended approval. 
 
 Discussion ensued with Mr. Ammons explaining the multiple meetings in 
Birmingham with officials in other cities while working out this agreement. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that they expect this to be a multiple-year project. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Jim Diggle, 4205 White Oak Drive, asked that the Council do anything to help out 
the traffic of this area.  He challenged the Council to reopen a bridge at Cahaba Beach 
Road. 
 
 Mr. Ammons explained Shelby County’s efforts to reopen that bridge. 
 
 Peggy Gargus, 3931 South River Circle, stated that many people wish to keep that 
bridge closed. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
Pro-Tem closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4805 
 
Resolution Number 4805 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver An Agreement With Sain Associates For Professional 
Traffic Engineering Services Associated With A Corridor Study Of A 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 6 
 

Defined Segment Of Dolly Ridge Road From E.A. Hollis Drive To 
Pump House Road/Cahaba Heights Road  (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4805 was by Mr. Sharp and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is a Resolution to study the corridor along a 
defined segment of Dolly Ridge Road to do a traffic study to determine what 
improvements the City might need to make in the area defined. 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that this was discussed indepth at a previous work session. 
 
 Mr. Boone asked that the two paragraphs for indemnification be deleted in their 
entirety. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked that the traffic studies be done during a time when school is in 
session in order to allow accurate counting. 
 
MOTION Motion to delete the two paragraphs for indemnity and limitation of 

remedy was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  Roll Call vote 
as follows: 

   Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Missy Turner, 3295 Greendale Road, asked about a referenced development on 
the west side of Dolly Ridge Road.    She asked if any improvements must be done, how 
is there any room when the buildings are against the road? 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that there might be some potential development around the 
Acton property but there are no definite plans nor does anyone have any direct 
knowledge of development.   
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that nothing can be stated until the study is given along with 
the professional recommendations. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to numerous past studies of the area of Cahaba Height.  Mr. 
Downes explained the difference in this traffic study. 
 
 Mike Gargus, 3931 South River Circle, stated that the buildings are set too close 
to the road and asked about the standards for setbacks for sidewalks, etc. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 7 
 

 Robert Debuys, 3467 Mossbrook Lane, asked if the previous plan can be used to 
gauge a trend in the traffic counts.  There was no pedestrian traffic count done with the 
previous study and asked that this includes one. 
 
 Mr. Henley explained.   
 
 Jim Diggle, 4056 White Oak Drive, asked about Dolly Ridge Road topography 
for an elevated entrance.   
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that ALDOT reviewed that and rejected the idea. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
Pro-Tem closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
       Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4807 
 
Resolution Number 4807 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As 

Surplus And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4807 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution surpluses some equipment and vehicles no 
longer needed by the City. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4809 
 
Resolution Number 4809 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 

To Enter Into An Agreement With Holcombe Norton Partners, Inc. 
For Architectural Services For Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex Park 
Improvements 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4809 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 8 
 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is the design for Phase II of improvements to 
SHAC and authorizes Ed Norton to do these designs.  This is being funded primarily by 
the Park Foundation with cost sharing with the City capped at $599,000 which has 
already been approved.  This agreement is far below the City’s approved cost share. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the agreement and found no problems. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council regarding this matter, he called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action on Resolution Number 4808 and Ordinance Number 2650. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Number 4808 and Ordinance Number 2650 was by Mr. 
Henley and second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
         Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4808 
 
Resolution 4808 – A Resolution Authorizing A Special Economic Development 

Agreement By The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And SCP At 
Liberty Park, LLC  (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4808 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained the procedure for unanimous consent as allowed by 
Alabama law. 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the Council has discussed this in previous work sessions. 
 
 Mr. Downes gave the background of a potential development in the Liberty Park 
area and described the terms of the Resolution which include a 9,000 SF retail center.  



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 9 
 

The property is challenged and has remained undeveloped because of the cost of 
infrastructure.   
 
 Mr. Sharp pointed out that the Council has done this several times over the past 
few years. 
 
 Heyward Hosch, Maynard, Cooper and Gale, explained the advertisement, the 
Resolution structure and the terms of the agreement. 
 
 Mr. Henley asked if this abates school board taxes. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the City can only incentivize with City funds. 
 
 Mr. Boone recommended approval. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Mike Gargus, 3931 South River Circle, asked if the Council now has trained 
developers to expect this type of incentive. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that development doesn’t have a cookie cutter approach.  The 
City studies each and every request and if there is a true gap that exists that would 
preclude a desired development, the request is given due attention. 
 
 Mr. Boone indicated that this request does not begin any precedence.  He 
explained the structure of the Resolution including the excerpt from the minutes. 
 
 Jim Diggle, 4056 White Oak Drive, stated that this looks like a strip center to him 
with no standards from Liberty Park. 
 
 Peggy Gargus, 3931 South River Circle, stated that she is concerned with the 
amount of impervious materials.  The Resolution was hard to understand.  She asked 
about the development and the sewage waste. 
 
 Mr. Ammons directed this question to engineering. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that this goes through Liberty Park’s facilities for both sanitary 
and storm water sewer. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
         Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 10 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2650 
 
Ordinance 2650 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Settlement Of A Lawsuit (Public 

Hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2650 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp 
 
 Mr. Boone gave the background of this request.  He stated that he wrote 
Ordinance 2650 and recommended that the City Council approve and enact this 
Ordinance to settle a litigation case which has been pending since 2011.  He explained 
the settlement terms and conditions and indicated that this dismisses this lawsuit with 
prejudice which means no party can bring this matter back to court.  He explained the 
allegations within the lawsuit which include both federal and state allegations, all of 
which are disputed.  Because of the length of the litigation with complex allegations and 
recommended that the City accept the settlement.  Some of the it will be paid by Trident, 
the City’s insurer at the time and the remainder by the City.  J. Bentley Owens was the 
attorney who represented the City throughout the years and the case was mediated twice.  
Mr. Boone explained mediation and indicated that he was not present and the results are 
confidential.  He stated that he recommends approval of this Ordinance. 
 
 Mr. Henley asked Mr. Boone to give a synopsis of why this started. 
 
 Mr. Boone gave a background of the litigation. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor Pro-Tem closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
         Motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will 
be presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
March 28, 2016 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2648 – Conditional Use - 854 Vestlake Ridge Drive, Use For 
A Home Office For A Consulting Business; James Sumner, Jr., Owner 

• Ordinance Number 2649 – Rezoning – 2834 and 2838 Acton Place; Rezone 
From Jefferson County A to Vestavia Hills A; Compatible Zoning; Gail Acton, 
Owner 

• Resolution Number 4810 – A Resolution Approving Funding And Purchasing 
For Two Vehicles For The Police Department 



City Council Minutes 
 March 14, 2016 

Page 11 
 

 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 Robert Debuys, 3467 Mossbrook Lane, stated that the residents of Cahaba 
Heights are very proactive toward development but wish to have more open 
communication because they are nervous. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that many of these developments, projects, etc., are explained 
indepth in open work sessions and everyone is welcome to attend.  He also pointed out 
that there are first read on many of the items to give public notice of upcoming issues. 
 
 Mindy Bodenhamer, 1308 Wickford Road, stated that the Library Foundation 
Board is accepting applications at www.vestavialibrary.org and invited everyone to 
apply. 
 
 Ms. Leavings announced the candidates’ workshop to be held Wednesday 
beginning at 10 AM in the Council Chamber of City Hall. 
 
 Missy Turner asked if someone could pick up a packet for a potential candidate.  
Ms. Leavings explained that there are only a few of them and asked that anyone 
interested in actually running to take a packet. 
 
 
 At 7:10 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Mr. Henley.  
Meeting adjourned at 7:10 PM. 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tempore 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

MARCH 21, 2016 
 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in special session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Treasurer 

Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Marvin Green, Asst. Fire Chief 
Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 
Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

 
 Invocation was given by Melvin Turner, Finance Director, followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance.   
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for immediate consideration 
and possible action of all items on the agenda. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent and immediate action of all items on the 

agenda was made by Mr. Ammons and second was by Mr. Pierce  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 2 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2651 
 
Ordinance Number 2651 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The City Of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) To Pay To The Board Of Education 
Of The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama For The Payment Of A 
Portion Of The Purchase Price For The Acquisition Of The Former 
Berry Middle School Campus By The Board (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2651 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Henley explained that the Vestavia Hills Board of Education has submitted a 
contract to the Hoover Board of Education to purchase the former Berry School for $11 
million.  The Council is looking at putting in $2 million toward that purchase to assist 
them in acquiring this property.  The City found in recent Park and Recreation studies 
that the City is in need of certain recreational facilities and a shared use between the 
schools and the City would help to alleviate some of this and would be a great mutual 
asset. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to how the fields will be shared, maintained and who will 
determine that use.  The Mayor explained that Public Services has always worked with 
the Board to schedule written schedules and some written agreements will be drafted 
later. 
 
 Dr. Sheila Phillips, Superintendent of Education along with Mark Hogewood, 
Board of Education member, thanked the Council for the support.  The intent is to benefit 
the community as much as possible. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this has been discussed earlier. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained the details of the contract and that the Board of Education 
can only operate a school located in the municipality.  If this moves forward, Hoover will 
have to de-annex the property and the City would have to annex it.  This contract allows 
the Board a due diligence of 90 days and they can walk away from the deal if they desire. 
 
 Mr. Sharp stated that this is a very exciting prospect. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this was discussed during the strategic planning and the 
entire community needs to study every opportunity for facilities.  This will help the 
Board do a lot of good things for the community as a whole. 
 
 Mr. Henley indicated there’s approximately $40 million worth of construction, 
land and assets in this and it’s a good deal. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 3 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that he is not opposed to this purchase 
but asked about the assessment of the property through tax records.  He stated that his 
concern was that the Board was overpaying for the property. 
 
 Dr. Phillips stated that when the City of Hoover was going to purchase this 
property, it would have been $9,000,000.  If the new appraisal doesn’t show that much, 
they will renegotiate; however, after touring the campus, they feel this is certainly worth 
the offer.  The recreational facilities alone are worth quite a bit. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – no vote   Mr. Ammons – yes  
  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
** Mr. Sharp stepped away from the meeting. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4811 
 
Resolution Number 4811 – A Resolution Approving The Structure And Offering Of 

General Obligation Warrants, Series 2016 (Public Hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4811 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution sets forth parameters for a team to sell 
bonds for the purpose of capital warrants for refinance of debt which would allow a 
savings of $2 million to support the contribution to the Board of Education.  Chris 
Matthews, the City’s financial advisor, brought this savings opportunity to the attention 
of the City.   
 
 Chris Williams explained that historical rates make it advantageous to refinance 
current debt and would roll the $2 million into the issue but doesn’t increase the City’s 
debt services.  He explained that rating services prefer cities to utilize that type of 
refinancing. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the City’s current bond rating of AA plus and since this is 
an anticipated reduction in cost and increase in revenues, it trends the City upward; thus 
further improving the City’s position. 
 
 Mr. Ammons thanked Mr. Turner and Mr. Williams for detailing the City’s 
revenues for the year and the upward trend in collections. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 The Mayor stated that this was studied by the Financial Advisory Committee and 
recommended for approval. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this limits issuance costs which are at the lowest that they 
have ever been by utilizing Frazier Lanier. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked about the increase in City debt and the 
procedure that the Board will take to pay off the property. 
 
 Dr. Phillips stated that the Board of Education has a resolve due to excellent 
planning and saving by her predecessor.  They have about $29 million in reserves and 
have the cash ready to go for this project.  She stated that they have the requested 
information on the website and would be happy to discuss the City Board’s debt at any 
time. 
 
 Mr. Williams stated that the City’s debt would raise this fiscal year, but that 
would be reduced next February when the City makes the $2.6 million debt payment. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked if these facilities will be open to the 
general public allowing families to go out and use them on weekends.   
 
 The Mayor stated that is the preferred goal.  However, some of the details will 
have to be worked out. 
 
 David Harwell stated that he has noticed a deluge of signage located on power 
poles, rights-of-way, etc., throughout the City.  He asked that the City begin to enforce 
the sign ordinance. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the City is working on enforcement of the sign ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 5 
 

 At 5:55 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn into the work session located in 
the Executive Conference room and was seconded by Mr. Ammons.  Meeting adjourned 
at 5:56 PM. 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

MARCH 21, 2016 
 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in special session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Treasurer 

Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Marvin Green, Asst. Fire Chief 
Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 
Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

 
 Invocation was given by Melvin Turner, Finance Director, followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance.   
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for immediate consideration 
and possible action of all items on the agenda. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent and immediate action of all items on the 

agenda was made by Mr. Ammons and second was by Mr. Pierce  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 2 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2651 
 
Ordinance Number 2651 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The City Of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) To Pay To The Board Of Education 
Of The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama For The Payment Of A 
Portion Of The Purchase Price For The Acquisition Of The Former 
Berry Middle School Campus By The Board (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2651 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Henley explained that the Vestavia Hills Board of Education has submitted a 
contract to the Hoover Board of Education to purchase the former Berry School for $11 
million.  The Council is looking at putting in $2 million toward that purchase to assist 
them in acquiring this property.  The City found in recent Park and Recreation studies 
that the City is in need of certain recreational facilities and a shared use between the 
schools and the City would help to alleviate some of this and would be a great mutual 
asset. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to how the fields will be shared, maintained and who will 
determine that use.  The Mayor explained that Public Services has always worked with 
the Board to schedule written schedules and some written agreements will be drafted 
later. 
 
 Dr. Sheila Phillips, Superintendent of Education along with Mark Hogewood, 
Board of Education member, thanked the Council for the support.  The intent is to benefit 
the community as much as possible. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this has been discussed earlier. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained the details of the contract and that the Board of Education 
can only operate a school located in the municipality.  If this moves forward, Hoover will 
have to de-annex the property and the City would have to annex it.  This contract allows 
the Board a due diligence of 90 days and they can walk away from the deal if they desire. 
 
 Mr. Sharp stated that this is a very exciting prospect. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this was discussed during the strategic planning and the 
entire community needs to study every opportunity for facilities.  This will help the 
Board do a lot of good things for the community as a whole. 
 
 Mr. Henley indicated there’s approximately $40 million worth of construction, 
land and assets in this and it’s a good deal. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 3 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that he is not opposed to this purchase 
but asked about the assessment of the property through tax records.  He stated that his 
concern was that the Board was overpaying for the property. 
 
 Dr. Phillips stated that when the City of Hoover was going to purchase this 
property, it would have been $9,000,000.  If the new appraisal doesn’t show that much, 
they will renegotiate; however, after touring the campus, they feel this is certainly worth 
the offer.  The recreational facilities alone are worth quite a bit. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – no vote   Mr. Ammons – yes  
  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
** Mr. Sharp stepped away from the meeting. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4811 
 
Resolution Number 4811 – A Resolution Approving The Structure And Offering Of 

General Obligation Warrants, Series 2016 (Public Hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4811 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution sets forth parameters for a team to sell 
bonds for the purpose of capital warrants for refinance of debt which would allow a 
savings of $2 million to support the contribution to the Board of Education.  Chris 
Matthews, the City’s financial advisor, brought this savings opportunity to the attention 
of the City.   
 
 Chris Williams explained that historical rates make it advantageous to refinance 
current debt and would roll the $2 million into the issue but doesn’t increase the City’s 
debt services.  He explained that rating services prefer cities to utilize that type of 
refinancing. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the City’s current bond rating of AA plus and since this is 
an anticipated reduction in cost and increase in revenues, it trends the City upward; thus 
further improving the City’s position. 
 
 Mr. Ammons thanked Mr. Turner and Mr. Williams for detailing the City’s 
revenues for the year and the upward trend in collections. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 The Mayor stated that this was studied by the Financial Advisory Committee and 
recommended for approval. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this limits issuance costs which are at the lowest that they 
have ever been by utilizing Frazier Lanier. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked about the increase in City debt and the 
procedure that the Board will take to pay off the property. 
 
 Dr. Phillips stated that the Board of Education has a resolve due to excellent 
planning and saving by her predecessor.  They have about $29 million in reserves and 
have the cash ready to go for this project.  She stated that they have the requested 
information on the website and would be happy to discuss the City Board’s debt at any 
time. 
 
 Mr. Williams stated that the City’s debt would raise this fiscal year, but that 
would be reduced next February when the City makes the $2.6 million debt payment. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding the request, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
  Mr.  Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes  
  Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes  
  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked if these facilities will be open to the 
general public allowing families to go out and use them on weekends.   
 
 The Mayor stated that is the preferred goal.  However, some of the details will 
have to be worked out. 
 
 David Harwell stated that he has noticed a deluge of signage located on power 
poles, rights-of-way, etc., throughout the City.  He asked that the City begin to enforce 
the sign ordinance. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the City is working on enforcement of the sign ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 March 21, 2016 

Page 5 
 

 At 5:55 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn into the work session located in 
the Executive Conference room and was seconded by Mr. Ammons.  Meeting adjourned 
at 5:56 PM. 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2648 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2648 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR A HOME OCCUPATION  

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City 

of Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2001 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 1864 to rezone 3,350 +/- acres from multiple 

Jefferson County and Vestavia Hills zoning classifications to Vestavia Hills P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 709.5.A.1.b of Ordinance Number 1838 classifies a “home 

occupation” permitted only as a “Conditional Use” and 

 WHEREAS, James Sumner, Jr. is the owner of the property located at 854 

Vestlake Ridge Drive, currently zoned Vestavia Hills PUD PR-1 (planned unit 

development planned residential district) more particularly described as Lot 1070, 

Vestlake Ridge; and 

 WHEREAS, James Sumner, Jr. has submitted application for conditional use 

approval for a home occupation to be operated in his residence located at 854 Vestlake 

Ridge Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, James Sumner, Jr. has indicated in his application for conditional 

use approval that he will operate an office for his consultation business out of his home 

pursuant to the specifications of a home occupation; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated January 14, 2016 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2648. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2648 
Page 2 

 
1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for James Sumner, Jr. for a 

home occupation as described in the above-referenced application for his 

residence located at 854 Vestlake Ridge Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

located in Liberty Park P.U.D. subject to the provisions outlined in Article 9 

of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code outlined as follows: 

a. “Home occupation is defined as any use customarily conducted entirely 

within a dwelling and carried on solely by the inhabitant thereof, and 

which use is clearly incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary to 

the use of the dwelling for dwelling purposes, and does not change the 

character of the dwelling itself or any part of parcel of property in the 

neighborhood surrounding said dwelling; and 

b. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the main dwelling building 

on the lot.  No more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the said dwelling 

may be used for a home occupation; and 

c. There shall be no public display of goods and absolutely no commodities 

sold on the premises; and 

d. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 

advertising any home occupation; and 

e. No home occupation or profession shall be permitted if such occupation 

creates noise, odors, vibrations or traffic which interferes with the 

residential qualities of the neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, 

convenience and general welfare are concerned; and 



Ordinance Number 2648 
Page 3 

 
f. In order to be a permitted home occupation or profession, the use must be 

one which is habitually, customarily and commonly established as a 

reasonable incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary use; and 

g. Operation of any and all other business of any nature in residential zones 

is expressly prohibited; and 

h. The activity carried on as home occupation shall be limited to the hours 

between 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM; and 

i. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 

keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle and no additional traffic 

shall be generated by said conditional use; and 

j. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises 

shall be employed by the home occupation; and 

2. Conditional Use Approval is further conditioned upon and subject to all 

applicable private and restrictive covenants attached to the property located at 

said property located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

3. A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon application 

and payment by James Sumner, Jr. working subject to the rules and 

regulations outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License Code and shall be 

renewed each year that the home occupation is operated from the said 

property located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

4. At any time should James Sumner, Jr. vacate the premises located at 854 

Vestlake Ridge Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, discontinue or relocate this 



Ordinance Number 2648 
Page 4 

 
business, this conditional use approval shall be nullified and said Ordinance 

Number 2648 shall be automatically repealed. 

5. This Ordinance Number 2648 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of March, 

2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2648 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of March, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0216-07 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a home based business  

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  854 Vestlake Ridge Dr. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  James L. Sumner, Jr. 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant wishes to conduct a home based business 

in Liberty Park. As required by the Liberty Park PUD a conditional use permit is 
required for a home based business. A description of the applicants business, as well 
as an approval letter from Liberty Park is attached. The property is zoned PR-1. 

 
• LIBERTY PARK MASTER PLAN:  This request is consistent with the procedures 

of the Liberty Park PUD. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission recommend 
approval with the following conditions:  
1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation. 
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises. 
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation. 
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned. 

Ordinance 2648 
Exhibit A Page 1



5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation. 
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle. 
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation. 
8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use Approval 
for a home based business at 854 Vestlake Ridge Dr. with the following conditions: 

1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation. 
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises. 
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation. 
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned. 
5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation. 
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle. 
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation. 

Ordinance 2648 
Exhibit A Page 2



8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. 

Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 

 

Ordinance 2648 
Exhibit A Page 3



lorx.4.4til 2.0) (o 

P0216-07// 
854 Vestlake Ridge Drive 
Conditional Use 
James Sumner, Jr. 	PUD :ITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
PR1 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

P&Z Application 

Page 4 

I. 	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:  

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularlyWn the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chamber t the 
Municipal Center. 	 — 

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional 
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to 
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working days prior to the 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no 
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered. 
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it 
is to be considered. 

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes. 
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable 
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may 
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which 
will be billed to applicant at a later date.  "No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this 
application. Please refer to attached checklist. 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property) 

NAME: et ova -foe, j/k, 

 

  

ADDRESS: 

  

 

/14 0:114? 

MAILING DRESS (if different from above)  

PHONE NUMBER: 	,gW--►  l•-• OW  fft  e  e  • 	  

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT:   /1411  

O 

Ordinance 2648 
Exhibit A Page 4



r the intended purpose of: Req ted Condition. use Fo 

feet X Property size: 

IV. 	PROP  RTY DESCRIPTION: 
AOALIWAr i  

AIPIC/ 1.4 1./ A L*A r A _S —n 

Request that 	aboveylgscri 
to Sectio 

bed pr perry be approved conditional use approval pursuant 
the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code. 

Current Zoning of Property: ,moo ,/el 

ASV 

ample: From "VH R- " to "VH 0-1" for off)e building) 
**if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request* * 

Oven °wne  my hnd a 

ignature/Date 

	

this- 	day o _ 	• 

"x11  7;r. 

	

" 	.7mr- 	 / 

Representing Agent (if any)/date 

day of 	 , 20 	 

Nato 
. 

ublic 
My romAiiSs n expires /3  

III. ACTION REQUESTED 

P0216-07// 
854 Vestlake Ridge Drive' 
Conditional Use 
James Sumner, Jr. 
PR1 

PUD 

P&Z Application 

Page 5 

INFORMATION 	ATTACHED: 

Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

Application fees submitted. 

VI. 	I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

V. 

Ordinance 2648 
Exhibit A Page 5



JIM SUMNER & ASSOCIATES, LLC 
Post Office Box 430197 

Birmingham, Alabama 35243-0197 

Telephone: 334.462.9944 

Email: js@jimsumnerandassociates.com  

James L. Sumner, Jr. 

January 14, 2016 

Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission 
do Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
City of Vestavia Hills 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

Members of the Commission: 

P0216-07// 
854 Vestlake Ridge Drive 
Conditional Use 
James Sumner, Jr. 
PR1 

PUD 

I come before you seeking approval for a Conditional Use Approval allowing 
my LLC to conduct business as a Home Occupation in Liberty Park. 

Upon my retirement after seventeen years as Director of the Alabama Ethics 
Commission, I formed an LLC, named Jim Sumner & Associates, LLC, for the 
purpose of some limited consulting on ethics compliance issues for business. In 
the meantime, my wife and I have built a home in Liberty Park into which we have 
just moved. 

My business consists solely of me, a Post Office Box, a cell telephone and an 
e-mail address. I have no employees, no office, no equipment, no inventory and no 
deliveries at my address in Liberty Park. I do not ever plan on having any 
employees, nor will I have meetings with clients at my home. Simply stated, the 
conduct of my business is me answering questions or providing analysis on 
compliance issues and, periodically, me traveling to their offices for a meeting or 
presentation. 

I would sincerely appreciate your favorable consideration of my request. I will 
be pleased to provide any additional information the Commission needs or answer 
any of your questions. 

PROVIDING ANSWERS TO BUSINESS ON ETHICAL COMPLIANCE 

Ordinance 2648 
Exhibit A Page 6



8000 LIBERTY PARKWAY SUITE 114 VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35242 MAIN: 205/945.6401 FAX: 205/945.6442 WWW.LIBERTYPARK.COM  

parA' 
JOINT VENTURE, LLP 

January 14, 2016 

Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
City of Vestavia Hills 
Vestavia Hills City Hall 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

Re: 	James L. Sumner, Jr. 
854 Vestlake Ridge Drive 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35242 

Dear Ms. Leavings: 

We are writing in connection with the above matter. We understand Mr. James L. Sumner, Jr. is in the 
process of applying for a conditional use within the PR-1 (Planned Single-Family Residential) classification of the 
Liberty Park PUD to allow him to conduct a home occupation as a consultant in his residence. 

We have no objection to the granting of the conditional use to allow a home occupation in this case, 
provided such use is made subject to the following restrictions: 

1. There shall be no customer, client or employee traffic to, at or near the residence that is 
generated, directly or indirectly, by the home occupation; 

2. There shall be no pick ups or deliveries to the residence that are related, directly or indirectly, to 
the home occupation, including without limitation, pick ups and deliveries by overnight courier 
services and pick ups and deliveries of inventory, samples or other goods and services related, 
directly or indirectly, to the home occupation; 

3. There shall be no signage on the property related, directly or indirectly, to the home occupation; 
and 

4. In all respects, there shall be no means, visual or otherwise, by which a casual observer would 
become aware that the residence is being used for any purpose other than strictly residential. 

The foregoing restrictions are in keeping with the intent and spirit of the Liberty Park PUD and with the 
overall plan of development for Liberty Park as addressed in the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions that are 
applicable to the subject property. 

Ordinance 2648 
Exhibit A Page 7



By: 
Sa 	Lo ey, II 
Project Manager 
and Authorized Representative 

Rebecca Leavings 
January 14, 2016 
Page 2 

Therefore, we respectfully request that if the Planning and Zoning Commission votes to approve the 
conditional use applied for in the above referenced matter, such approval will be made subject to the above and 
foregoing restrictions. 

If you have questions or comments regarding this matter, or if we can assist in any other way, please call 
me at 281-3542. 

Very truly yours, 

LIBERTY PARK JOINT VENTURE, LLP 

cc: 	Kathryn Carver, Esq. 

Ordinance 2648 
Exhibit A Page 8



Ordinance Number 2649 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2649 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY A TO VESTAVIA HILLS A 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County A (ariculture) 

to Vestavia Hills A (agriculture):  

2834 and 2838 Acton Place 
Gail M. Acton, Owner 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Parcel 1: 
 
A parcel of land located in the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter 
of Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, more particularly 
described as follows : 
 
Commence at the Northwest comer of said Quarter-Quarter section; 
thence in a Southerly direction along the Westerly line of said Quarter-
Quarter section, a distance of 324.17 feet; thence 53 degrees 36 minutes 
24 seconds left, in a Southeasterly direction a distance of 551.35 feet to 
the Point of Beginning; thence continue along last described course, a 
distance of 193.54 feet; thence 20 degrees 46 minutes 34 seconds right in a 
Southeasterly direction a distance of 116.12 feet to a point 30 feet 
northerly from the center line of the existing Acton Place; thence 104 
degrees 58 minutes 20 seconds right in a Southwesterly direction along 
said 30 foot line, a distance of 176.13 feet; thence 97 degrees 00 minutes 
right in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 271.27 feet to the Point of 
Beginning; being situated in Jefferson County, Alabama.  Source of Title: 
Deed Book 200702 Page 3042 

 
Parcel 2: 
 

A parcel of land located in the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter 
of Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, more particularly 
described as follows : 



Ordinance Number 2649 
Page 2 

 
 
Commence at the Northwest corner of said Quarter-Quarter section; 
thence in a Southerly direction along the Westerly line of said Quarter-
Quarter section, a distance of 324.17 feet; thence 53 degrees 36 minutes 
24 seconds left, in a Southeasterly direction a distance of 413.25 feet to 
the Point of Beginning; thence continue along last described course, a 
distance of 138.10 feet; thence 42 degrees 44 minutes 54 seconds right, in 
a Southeasterly direction, a distance of 271.27 feet to a point 30 feet 
Northerly from the center line of the existing Acton Place; thence 83 
degrees 00 minutes right, in a Southwesterly direction along said 30 foot 
line, a distance of 14.53 feet; thence 1 degree 11 minutes 24 seconds right, 
in a Southwesterly direction along said 30 foot line, a distance of 154.89 
feet; thence 106 degrees 39 minutes 36 seconds right, in a Northerly 
direction, a distance of 397.24 feet to the Point of Beginning; situated in 
Jefferson County, Alabama.  Source of Title: Deed Book 3998 Page 606. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of March, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2649 
Page 3 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2649 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of March, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2649 
Page 4 

 

 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016 
 

• CASE:  P-0216-05 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County Agricultural to Vestavia Hills 
A-Agriculture 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2834 & 2838 Acton Pl. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Gail M. Acton 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

4/6/92 with the passage of Ordinance 1281 but never rezoned to City zoning. 
Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 2834 & 2838 
Acton Pl. from Jefferson County Agricultural to Vestavia Hills A-Agriculture For The Purpose 
Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. Visintainer. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as 
follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     

Ordinance 2649 
Exhibit A Page 1



Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 

 

Ordinance 2649 
Exhibit A Page 2



P0216-05//28-34-2-18.001&28-34- 
2-18 
2834 & 2838 Acton PL. 
Rezone from JC A to VH A 
Gail M. Acton 	JC A 

P&Z Application 

Page 4 

c.,ITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

I. 	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:  

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularly on the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at the 
Municipal Center. 

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional 
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to 
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working  days priork the 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information reltilIng to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City 0:irk no 
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered. 
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it 
is to be considered. 

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes. 
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable 
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may 
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which 
will be billed to applicant at a later date.  **No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this 
application. Please refer to attached checklist. 

II. 	APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property) 

NAME: 	
Gail M. Acton 

ADDRESS: 2834 Acton Place Vestavia Hills AL 35243 

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above) 
	same 

PHONE NUMBER: Home 205-967-0007 	 Office  205 -229-2530 

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT: 	  

Doug Acton 

Ordinance 2649 
Exhibit A Page 3



P&Z Application 

Page 5 

III. ACTION REQUESTED 

P0216-05//28-34-2-18.001&28-34- 
2-18 
2834 & 2838 Acton PL. 
Rezone from JC A to VH A 
Gail M. Acton 	JC A 

Property size: feet X 	 feet. Acres: 1.7 +/- acres 

Request that the above described property be zoned/rezoned 

From: 	Jefferson County Agriculture 

To: 	Vestavia Hills Agric 

For the intended purpose of: construction of new home & compatible zoning of 

existing home 

(Example: From "VH R-1" to "VH 0-1" for office building) 
**if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request* * 

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 	(address, legal, etc.) 

2834 & 2838 Acton Road 

INFORMATION 	ATTACHED: 

Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

Application fees submitted. 

VI. 	I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, thp owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

Representing Agent (if any)/date Owner Signature/Dat 

V.  

Given undsr my hand and seal 
this 3(-6\day  of  Duirth,t   , 20  1  `). 

Notary ' ..lic 

My commission expires 
t)11  day of  I 

c; I Le 
, 20   ILI   

..••■•• 	%. 	7":. 

•;:." --- 

„:■.• 

Ordinance 2649 
Exhibit A Page 4



Resolution 4810 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4810 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FUNDING AND PURCHASING FOR 

TWO VEHICLES FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

  

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase two vehicles needed for the Police 

Department as detailed in the memorandum from the Police Chief dated March 10, 2016; 

and 

2. Funding for the two vehicles will be attainted from the Defensive Driving School Fund; 

and 

3. This Resolution Number 4810 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28
th

 day of March, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution 4810 

Page 2 

 

VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT    
 

 

To: Jeff Downes    MEMO 
  

From: Chief Rary 

 

Date:  9 March 2016 

 

CC:  Becky Leavings 

 

Re: Purchase Vehicles 

 

 

 

I request to purchase two (2) vehicles for the Police Department.  These vehicles will be 

unmarked small cars to be used in undercover investigations.   

 

I am requesting to use DDS funds not to exceed $35,000.00 for this purchase.  I have spoken 

with George Sawaya and we have the funds in this account.  

 

Both vehicles will be purchased off the State of Alabama Bid List. 

 

 

 

Thank you. 

 

 



Resolution Number 4812 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4812 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell and/or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4812 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 28th day of 

March, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4812



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4813 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR SHAC, PHASE II TRAIL AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER 
AN AGREEMENT FOR SAID CONSTRUCTION 

 
 WHEREAS, on March 9, 2016, bids were opened and publicly read for the Sicard 

Hollow Athletic Complex (SHAC) Park Improvements, HNP C013060; and 

 WHEREAS, three bids were received detailed as follows:  (1) CB&A in the amount of 

$27,800; (2) Veterans Landscaping in the amount of $77,350; and (3) Sprouse Landscaping in 

the amount of $124,750; and 

 WHEREAS, the City’s consultant, in a letter dated March 17, 2016, reviewed the bid 

submittals and recommended the acceptance of CB&A in an amount not to exceed $27,800; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Services Director in an Interoffice Memorandum dated March 

23, 2016 concurred with the consultant’s recommendation; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best interest of the public and 

accept said recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by CB&A in an amount not to exceed $27,800 is hereby accepted 

as submitted; and 

2. Funding for said bid shall be derived from SHAC Improvement funding as approved 

in Resolution Number 4783; and 

3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver said contract for 

construction following the written approval of the City Attorney; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4813 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of March, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 



 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4813



Resolution Number 4814 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4814 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH JEFFERSON COUNTY 
FOR ELECTION SERVICES  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, will conduct a municipal 

election on August 23, 2016 for the purpose of election of a Mayor, Council Place #1, 

Council Place #2, Council Place #3, and Council Place #4 with all elected positions voted 

“at large,” and a runoff election on October 4, 2016, if needed; and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to purchase certain election services from the 

County; and 

 WHEREAS, Jefferson County has provided the City with a “Contract for 

Election Services” (the Contract) detailing the available equipment and provided the cost 

of said equipment; and 

 WHEREAS, Jefferson County requested that the City pre-order and pre-pay for 

said equipment. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract for election 

services with Jefferson County as per attached contract; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4814 is effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 28th day of March, 

2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



STATE O
 
JEFFERS

             
             

 
THIS AGRE
State of Alab
 
WHEREAS,
____; and  
 
WHEREAS,
 
NOW, THER
 
SCOPE OF 
election serv
ballot tabula
voter registr
design and 
delivery/pick
authorization
 
EXCLUSION
provisions fo
 
MUNICIPAL
the legal juri
 
EQUIPMEN
 
 

EQ
DS200 Ta
AUTOMA
Equipme
ePollboo
Voter Lis
Voter Lis
Tables
Chairs
Privacy 
"Vote He
Table to
* Rounde

  
 
DELIVERY 
services of 
equipment d
 
 **In additio
each site fo
City. 
 

OF ALABA

SON COUN

             
                 

EEMENT entered
bama (hereinafte

, the City’s Munic

, the City desires

REFORE IN CON

SERVICES; Th
vices for the abo

ators, ES&S AUT
ration verification
layout, equipmen
kup and Electio
n. 

NS; Ballot printi
or ballot printing 

L ELECTIONS; T
isdiction of Jeffer

T; The County a

QUIPMENT
abulators
ARKS
ent Delivery
ok Laptops
st ‐ Posting/P
st ‐ CD

Booths
ere" Signage
p sign‐INTAB
ed up

AND PICKUP 
election equipme

deliveries/pickups

on to the delive
or redelivery if t

AMA 

NTY 
 

   MUNICIP
 
 

d into this ______
er called “the Cou

cipal election will

s to purchase cer

NSIDERATION O

he Scope of this 
ove specified ele
TOMARKS (vote
), voter privacy b
nt coding, assist

on Day support 

ng services and
and Election Day

The specified ele
rson County Alab

agrees to provide

UNIT R
45
45
22
10

Pub 1
1

B

OF EQUIPMEN
ent. The City cle
s.**  

ery base rate lis
the equipment c

PAL ELECT

_____, ____, by 
unty”), and the C

l occur on______

rtain election serv

OF THE ABOVE

agreement is fo
ection which may
er assist terminal
booths, tables, ch
tance with equipm

for the provide

d Election Day s
y supplies. 

ections equipmen
bama 

e the following eq

RATE UN
0.00
0.00
0.00

00.00
1.00 per
1.00 per 10
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

NT; County has 
erk shall be resp

sted above, the
cannot be delive

TION SERV

and between Je
City of _________

____, ____, and

vices from the C

E AND THE BEL

or County’s Gene
y include reques
s, for handicap v
hairs, exterior “vo
ment logic and a
ed equipment. C

supplies are not 

nt may be used 

quipment for the 

IT OF MEASU
each
each

per precinct
each

r 1000 Name
000 Names* 

each
each
each
each
each

entered into a 
ponsible for coor

e County will be
ered on the sch

VICES AGR

efferson County 
______________

, if required, a ru

County. 

OW, the parties 

eral Services De
sted equipment a
voters), electron
ote here” signag

accuracy testing,
City is respons

included in this

to conduct Muni

above listed Mun

URE QU

t

es*
+ $45

GRA

third party con
rdination with th

e reimbursed b
heduled delivery

REEMENT 

Commission, po
___, (hereinafter c

unoff election will

hereto do mutua

epartment-Electi
and services as 

nic ePollbooks (la
ge. Election servi
, ePollbook data 

sible for ballot p

s agreement. Cit

cipal elections fo

nicipal Election; 

UANTITY

AND TOTAL

ntractual agreem
e precinct’s site 

by the City an a
y date and time 

olitical subdivision
called “the City”)

l occur on _____

ally agree as follo

ons Division to 
follows; ES&S D

aptops for Electi
ces also include
downloads, equ

proofing accurac

ty shall make se

or cities which lie

 

EXTENDED

ment for delivery
contact person 

additional $175.
due to the fault

n of the 
). 

______, 

ows: 

provide 
DS-200 
on Day 

es ballot 
uipment 
cy and 

eparate 

e within 

D COST

y/pickup 
for the 

.00 per 
t of the 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4814



STATE O
 
JEFFERS
INSPECTIO
prior to the 
equipment s
replacement
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TERM OF A
 
COMPENSA
will not be d
 
RUNOFF EL
election. Cit
Chief of Elec
 
NOTICES a
agreement s
to the appro
 
 
 
COUNTY: J
  E
   7

  B
  P
 

 
  
  
executed by
 
 
 
__________
City Clerk  
 
 
 
__________
Mayor  
 
 
 
 
XXXXXXXX
 
 
 
 
 
James A. St
Commission
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OF ALABA

SON COUN
ON; The County a

release of equi
shall be returne
t cost for damage

AGREEMENT:  T

ATION: Paymen
delivered witho

LECTION: City s
y shall submit th
ctions along with

and PAYMENTS
shall be in writing
priate party at th

efferson County 
Election Division, 
716 Richard Arrin
Birmingham, Ala
Phone 205-849-2

 
IN WITN

y their duly autho

______________
 

______________
 

XXXXXXXXXXXX

tephens_______
n President 

AMA 

NTY 
and the City sha
pment to the Ci
d in the same 
ed equipment. 

The term of this a

nt shall be made
ut payment to t

shall contact the 
he completed Ru
h the payment for

S: All notices, p
g and shall be de
he following addre

General Service
Chief of Election

ngton Jr. Blvd. N
bama 35203 
2391 

NESS WHEREO
rized representa

___ ___
 Sign

___ ___
 Sign

XXXXXXXXXXXX

____ ___
 Sign

all jointly inspect 
ty and again im
condition it was

agreement is thro

 to “Jefferson C
the County in ad

General Service
unoff Election for
r the runoff electi

payments and o
eemed duly given
esses: 

es Department
ns-Room 1 
 

OF, the Parties ha
ative. 

______________
nature, City Clerk

______________
nature, City Man

XXXXXXXXXXXX

______________
nature, Commiss

each piece of eq
mmediately upon 
s in at the time 

ough the date of 

ounty Commissi
dvance of equip

es Chief of Electio
rm “Attachment A
ion. 

other communic
n if delivered per

 CITY 

ave hereunto se

______________
k 

______________
ager 

XXXXXXXXXXX

______________
sion President

quipment and no
return of the eq
of release. City

the election liste

ion” to the below
pment delivery. 

ons, to give notif
A” selecting the 

cations required 
rsonally in hand 

CLERK: 

et their hands and

______________
 

______________
 

XXXXXXXXXXXX

______________
 

ote the condition
quipment to the
y shall be respo

ed above or runo

w address under
 

fication of the sta
equipment and 

or permitted to
or sent via certif

d seals or cause

__ ______
Date 

__ ______
 

XXXXXXXXXXXX

__ ______
Date 

n of each item 
 County. The 

onsible for all re

off election if appl

r “Notices”. Equi

atus of a pending
quantity of each

o be given und
fied mail and add

ed these present

______________

______________
Date 

XXXXXXXXXXX

______________

epair or 

licable. 

ipment 

g runoff 
h to the 

der this 
dressed 

ts to be 

______ 

______ 

XXXXX 

______ 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4814



STATE O
 
JEFFERS
 
 
                    
 
 
 
 
 

 
RUNOF

 
In the ev
County, t
listed bel
 

Je
E
7
B
P
 
 

City; ___
 
 
Date of th
 
 

DS200 Ta
AUTOMAR
Equipmen
ePollboo
Voter List
Voter List
Tables
Chairs
Privacy B
"Vote Her
Table top
* Rounde

 
 
*City sha
provided
 

OF ALABA

SON COUN

                         

F ELECTIO

ent that the C
the City Cler
low and coor

efferson Cou
Election Divi

16 Richard A
Birmingham,

hone 205-84

___________

he Runoff el

bulators
RKS
nt Delivery
k Laptops
t ‐ Posting/Pu
t ‐ CD

Booths
re" Signage
p sign‐INTAB
ed up

all include p
d by the Coun

AMA 

NTY 

                          

ON REQUE
 

City has a ru
rk shall cont
rdinate subm

unty General
ision, Chief o
Arrington Jr
 Alabama 35
49-2391 

__________

lection; ____

450.00
450.00
220.00
100.00

b 11.00
11.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

payment for 
nty. 

                          

 ATTA

EST FORM

unoff electio
tact the Jeffe

mission of th

l Services D
of Elections
r. Blvd N 
5203 

___________

__________

Equipm
0 ea
0 ea
0 per pr
0 ea
0 per 1000
0 per 1000 Na
0 ea
0 ea
0 ea
0 ea
0 ea

services wit

                          

ACHMENT

M 

n and the Ci
erson County
he requested 

Department 
- Room1 

__________

___________

ment Selecti
ach
ach
recinct
ach
0 Names*
ames* + $45
ach
ach
ach
ach
ach

th this attach

                         

A 

ity requests e
y Chief of E
equipment a

____ 

___ 

ion 

GRAND TOTA

hment in ord

                          

election serv
Elections at th
and services

AL

der for the s

                          

vices from th
he address/p
; 

services to b

                          

he 
phone 

e 

                   

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4814



STATE O
 
JEFFERS
 
________
 __
City Clerk 

OF ALABA

SON COUN

__________
__________

 

AMA 

NTY 

___ ___
_____ 

 Sign

__________

nature , City Cle

___________

erk 

__________

 

__

Date 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4814



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4815 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING AN ELECTION 

MANAGER FOR THE 2016 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills General Municipal Election will be held on 

August 23, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills Municipal Run-off Election will be held October 

4, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has announced his intention to qualify as a candidate in the 2016 

General Municipal Election; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk, to serve as the 

Election Manager for the 2016 Municipal Elections. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS AS FOLLOWS: 

(1) That Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk, is hereby appointed to serve as the Election 

Manager for the 2016 Municipal Elections; and 

(2) That said appointment will be effective immediately upon adoption and approval 

of said Resolution Number 4815. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of March, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4816 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH THE BIRMINGHAM 
HUMANE SOCIETY FOR A LIMITED TNR PROGRAM IN ORDER TO 
ABATE A PUBLIC NUISANCE ASSOCIATED WITH MULTIPLE FERAL 
CAT COLONIES LOCATED IN THE CITY 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has studied a nuisance associated the multiple feral cat colonies 

located within the City of Vestavia Hills and has determined it to be a hazard that works to hurt, 

inconvenience or damage the community within the sphere of its operation; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has cited several provisions in Alabama law that gives 

the City Council the authority to adopt Ordinances and Resolutions to address said nuisances 

including, but not limited to the following: 

 1. Provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity and 

improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the inhabitants of the 

municipality and may enforce obedience to such ordinances (Title 11-45-1, Code of 

Alabama, 1975); and 

 2. Maintain the health and cleanliness of the City (Title 11-47-130, Code of 

Alabama, 1975); and 

 3. Insure good sanitary condition in public places or in private premises in the 

City (Title 11-47-131(3), Code of Alabama, 1975); and 

 4.  In Alabama, a “nuisance” is anything that works, hurts, inconveniences or 

damages another.  The fact that the act done may otherwise be lawful doesn’t keep from 

being a nuisance (Title 6-5-120, Code of Alabama, 1975).  A public nuisance is one 

which damages all persons who come within the sphere of its operation, though it may 

vary in its effect on individuals (Title 6-5-121, Code of Alabama, 1975).  Municipalities 

have the legal authority to abate public nuisances (Title 11-47-117, Title 11-47-188, Title 

6-5-120 and Title 6-50-122, Code of Alabama, 1975); and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has worked with the Birmingham Humane Society to put 

together an agreement for a limited TNR program to trap, evaluate and, if found to be healthy, 

spay/neuter and release the animals within the feral cat colonies.  The City Manager has 

requested the authorization to execute an agreement and an amount not to exceed $10,000 be 

appropriated to allow the Humane Society to begin this program; and 



 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree it is in the best public interest to accept 

the City Manager’s recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement with the 

Birmingham Humane Society for a limited TNR program to address the nuisance of 

feral cat colonies in the City pursuant to the provisions cited above from Alabama 

law; and 

2. An amount not to exceed $10,000 shall be appropriated to implement said program; 

and 

3. This Resolution Number 4816 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of March, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 









Resolution Number 4817 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4817 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL $24,000 FOR 
MOWING OF THE FORMER ALTADENA VALLEY COUNTRY CLUB 

 
 WHEREAS, on March 23, 2015, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4688 to accept a bid for right-of-way mowing in the City of Vestavia Hills; and  

WHEREAS, Turf Management was awarded said contract for a period of three (3) years; 

and 

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the contract allows for the addition and/or deletion of certain 

areas for mowing; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Services Director has determined a need for mowing services 

within the former Altadena Valley Country Club areas that were recently donated to the City; 

and 

WHEREAS, the addition of this property would cost the City an estimated $2,000 per 

month to maintain until the end of the fiscal year, September 2016, for a total not to exceed 

$24,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept 

said request for maintenance by Turf Management of the former Altadena Valley Country Club. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The addition of the acreage known as the former Altadena Valley Country Club is hereby 

added to the Turf Management agreement pursuant to the bid submitted at a cost not to 

exceed $2,000 per month through the end of September 2016 (total of $24,000); and 

2. This Resolution Number 4817 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of March, 2016, 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 



Resolution Number 4817 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Brian Davis
Sent: Tuesday, March 15, 2016 4:11 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: First Read on next agenda
Attachments: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer.pdf

Becky, we need to add cutting of AVCC 2 times per month starting in April and ending in September for $24,000 total 
($2000 per cut).  This will be on our contract with Turf Management, which allows us to add and subtract areas as 
needed.  I have attached the contract. 
 
Please add for a first read on the agenda at the next meeting with an approval at the first meeting in April.   
 
Thank you in advance.  Please let me know if you need anything else. 
 
"The pessimist sees difficulty in every opportunity.  The optimist sees opportunity in every difficulty." 
Winston Churchill 
 

 
 
Brian C. Davis, Director 
Department of Public Services 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 

   
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4817


	2016_0328CC_A
	2016_0314CC_M
	2016_0321CC_special mtg
	2016_0321CC_special mtg
	Ordinance 2648
	P-0216-07_Packet.pdf
	P-0216-07
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016

	App
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	P-0216-07.pdf
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016


	P-0216-07_Packet.pdf
	P-0216-07
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016

	App
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	P-0216-07.pdf
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016


	P-0216-07_Packet.pdf
	P-0216-07
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016

	App
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	P-0216-07.pdf
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016



	Ordinance 2649
	P-0216-05_Packet.pdf
	P-0216-05
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016

	App
	Page 1
	Page 2

	P-0216-05.pdf
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016


	P-0216-05_Packet.pdf
	P-0216-05
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016

	App
	Page 1
	Page 2

	P-0216-05.pdf
	Date:     FEBRUARY 11, 2016



	Resolution 4810
	Resolution 4812
	Resolution 4813
	Resolution 4814
	Resolution 4815
	Resolution 4816
	Resolution 4817



